


1 injunction, restitution, disgorgement of ill-gotten gains, and other equitable relief 

2 against Defendants for engaging in deceptive acts or practices in violation of 

3 Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 US.C. §§ 45(a), and the Commission's Trade 

4 Regulation Rule Concerning the Sale of Mail or Telephone Order Merchandise 

5 ("Mail Order Rule"), 16 C.F.R. Part 435. 

6 JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

7 2. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 15 US.c. 

8 §§ 45(a) and 53(b) and 28 US.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), and 1345. 

9 3. Venue in the Central District of California is proper under 28 US.C. 

10 §§ 1391(b) and (c) and 15 U.S.C. § 53(b). 

11 THE PARTIES 

12 4. Plaintiff Federal Trade Commission is an independent agency of the 

13 United States Government created by the FTC Act, 15 US.C. § 41 et seq. The 

14 FTC enforces the FTC Act, which prohibits unfair or deceptive acts or practices in 

15 or affecting commerce. The FTC also enforces the Mail Order Rule, which applies 

16 to orders placed by telephone, by facsimile transmission, or on the Internet. The 

17 FTC may initiate federal district court proceedings, through its own attorneys, to 

18 enjoin violations of the FTC Act and the Mail Order Rule, and to secure such other 

19 equitable relief, including restitution and disgorgement of ill-gotten gains, as may 

20 be appropriate in each case. 15 U.S.c. § 53(b). 

21 5. Defendant Balls of Kryptonite, LLC, is a California limited liability 

22 company with its primary place of business in Pasadena, California. It also does 

23 business as Best Priced Brands, LLC and Bite Size Deals, LLC through the 

24 web sites www.bestpricedbrands.co.uk and www.bitesizedeals.co.uk. Defendant 

25 Balls of Kryptonite, LLC sells consumer electronic products in the United 

26 Kingdom ("UK") through these websites. 

27 6. Defendant Intrigue Inc., is a Belize corporation with its primary place 

28 of business in Pasadena, California. It also does business as Crazy Cameras and 
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1 Specialty Software through the websites www.crazycameras.co.uk and 

2 www.specialtysoftware.co.uk. Intrigue Inc. sells digital cameras and computer 

3 software programs in the UK through these websites. 

4 7. Defendant Jaivin Karnani is the sole officer and member of Balls of 

5 Kryptonite, LLC and sole officer and shareholder of Intrigue Inc. 

6 8. Prior to the incorporation of Balls of Kryptonite, LLC, 





1 to California. Consumers do not receive any paperwork or description of what 

2 Defendants' "wananty" covers. 

3 15. Although Defendants represent that merchandise will be shipped 

4 quickly (ft 





1 selling of goods over the intemet, Defendants have represented to consumers, 

2 expressly or by implication, that the price for goods sold was 



1 internet web sites in exchange for payment in advance. 

2 32. In truth and in fact, in numerous instances, Defendants have failed to 

3 deliver the products offered for sale on their internet websites in exchange for 

4 payment in advance. 

5 33. Therefore, the representation set forth in Paragraph 31 is false and 

6 misleading, and constitutes a deceptive act or practice in violation of Section 5(a) of 

7 the FTC Act, 15 U.S.c. § 45(a). 

8 JOINT US - ED SAFE HARBOR FRAMEWORK 

9 34. The European Union Data Directive ("Directive") requires Member 

10 States of the European Union ("EU") to implement legislation that prohibits the 

11 transfer of personal 



1 37. Companies under the jurisdiction ofthe FTC or the U.S. Deparhnent of 

2 Transportation are eligible to join the Safe Harbor. A company under the FTC's 

3 jUlisdiction that self-certifies to the Safe Harbor principles but fails to implement 

4 them may be subject to an enforcement action based on the FTC's deception 

5 authority under Section 5 of the FTC Act. 

6 COUNT FIVE 

7 38. InnUlnerous instances, in connection with the offering for sale or 

8 selling of goods over the internet, Defendants have represented to conSUlners, 

9 expressly or by implication, that they have self-certified to Commerce that they are 

10 complying with the Safe Harbor. 

11 39. In truth and in fact, Defendants have never self-certified to Commerce 

12 that they are complying with the Safe Harbor. 

13 40. Therefore, the representation set forth in Paragraph 38 is false and 

14 misleading and constitutes a deceptive act or practice in violation of Section5(a) of 

15 the FTC Act, 15 U.S.c. § 45(a). 

16 THE MAIL ORDER RULE 

17 41. The Mail Order Rule was promulgated by the Commission on October 
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23 VIOLATIONS OF THE MAIL ORDER RULE 
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1 of the Mail Order Rule, 16 C.F.R. § 435.l(a)(I), by soliciting orders for the sale of 

2 merchandise when at the time of the sale Defendants had no reasonable basis to 

3 expect they would be able to ship merchandise to buyers either within the time 

4 promised, or within thirty (30) days. 

5 44. In numerous instances, after having solicited orders for merchandise 

6 and received "properly completed orders," as that telID is defined in Section 

7 435.2(d) of the Mail Order Rule, 16 C.F.R. § 435.2(d), and having been unable to 

8 ship some or all of the ordered merchandise to the buyer within the Mail Order 

9 Rule's applicable time periods, as set forth in Section 435.1(a)(l) of the Mail Order 

10 Rule, 16 C.F.R. § 435.l(a)(l) (the "applicable time"), Defendants have: 

11 a. Violated Section 435.1(b)(I) of the Rule by failing to timely 
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offer to the buyer, clearly and conspicuously and without prior 

demand, an option either to consent to a delay in shipping or to cancel 

the order and receive a prompt refund; 

b. Violated Section 435.1(b)(1) of the Rule by failing to provide 

the buyer with a definite revised shipping date; 

c. Violated Section 435.1(b)(2) of the Rule by failing to timely 

offer to the buyer, clearly and conspicuously and without prior 

demand, a renewed option either to consent to a delay in shipping or to 

cancel the order and receive a prompt refund; 

d. Violated Section 435. 1 (b)(2)(ii) of the Rule by failing to advise 

the buyer in a renewed option notice that the order will be 

automatically canceled and a prompt refund provided unless the buyer 

gives specific consent to a further delay prior to expiration of the old 

definite revised shipping date; and 

e. Violated Section 435.1(c)(3) of the Rule by failing to deem 

orders cancelled and malce prompt consumer refunds when consumers 

have not consented to further delay of shipments. 
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1 45. Section 5(a) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.c. § 45(a), provides that "unfair or 

2 deceptive acts or practices in or affecting commerce are hereby declared unlawful." 

3 46. Pursuant to Section 18( d)(3) of the FTC 



1 49. Award Plaintiff such other and additional equitable relief against 

2 Defendants for engaging in deceptive acts or practices as the Court may determine 
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to be just and proper. 

Dated: May 16,2011 Respectfully submitted, 

WILLARD K. TOM 
GENERAL COUNSEL 
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